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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Set back from Main Street, on the crest of a gently-sloping hill, Philon
College overlooks the main route of travel through the town which is located
on the west side of the Willamette Valley, between Corvallis and the Coast
Range, It is today, as when completed in 1867, the focal point of the commun
Plans called for a large building, However, due to lagging sales of
townsite lots at first, the United Brethren decided to build only the gable-
roofed central pavilion, which is of brick construction on a stone foundation

ath

ity.

The original two~story block measures 40 by 60 feet, Exterior walls are 24 inches

thick, Bricks were made on the site by Lewis Wilson at a cost of $6,95 per 1
It reportedly took 50,000 bricks to build this section of the school. Wood

,000,

beams and joists support the floors, and the roof is carried by trusses of hand-
hewn timber. A box cornice continues across the gable end, and the tympanum fis

lighted by coupled lunettes, Each of three bays is set off by brick pilastens

continuing the height of two stories, terminating in simple capitals at the
cornice. In the openings, doublerhung sash windows have many small panes,

Brick detailing under hooded lintels and the overall organization of the facdde?”
are reminiscent of Waller Hall on Willamette University campus in Salem completBY

by Methodists in the same year but started as early as 1864, The lower flooxn

was originally divided into two classrooms, the entrance being on the south gide,

The second floor was used as a chapel,

Throughout the remainder of the 19th century the original block stood
alone, and other buildings were added to the campus. These included a dormit
to the west (1877), a tworroom structure for the elementary departments to th
east (1897~1899), and a gymnasium (1902~1903). None of these later buildings
stands today,

Tn 1905 the west wing was added to the original building, and its counter~

part on the east side was completed in 1907, thus giving the structure a
cruciform plan. It isdoubtful that east and west wings conformed to the
original building plans in detail, .The shingled, hipped gambrel roofs with
bellcast lines, dormers, and upper window sashes of as many as 25 lights owe
more to the then current mode of the colonial revival than to earlier histor;
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Exterior walls are not solid brick construction, but brick veneer on wood frame,,

With the addition of the wings, which provided new entrances, the porch and
doorway in the center bay of the facade of the main block were removed and
replaced by a window opening, Detailing of the wings differs from that of th
main block which was derived from the classical revival. Window openings in
the wings have segmental arch heads, and those windows forming the outer bays
are coupled, The sills are brick, rather than wood., The eaves are somewhat
consistent with the original in design, but not in height. An octagonal
louvered belfry with cornice and shallow dome, a featuxe of the original
block, is set forward of the transverse center line, Interior walls and
ceilings are plastered, and the original wainscoting 1s intact.

Through the intervening years, the building has remained in sound condit
though there is some surface wear and deteriorationm. After the college was
closed, in 1929, the building was held and frequently used by the United Bref
Church until the completion last year of a new church within the historic
eight-acre parcel, immediately to the southeast of the college, Recently, at
the behest of the City of Philomath, a Portland architectural firm prepared 34
preliminary cost study for the building's restoration for use as a combinatig
museum and library facility, Spearheading the restoration effort is a privat
non-denominational group which incorporated in June, 1972, as the Philomath
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College Building Restoration Committee and acquired the building and 1.88 acr
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Philomath College is one of several distinctiy a0 f early

collegiate building in Oregon., The project was undertaken in 1865 by the
United Brethren in Christ as part of a program of expansion in the West,
Typical of the state's early sectarian enterprises, the school was the
nucleus around which the town of Philomath grew., The plan called for pur-
chasing a section of land, selecting a site for the bullding, and selling
the remainder in small lots for a new townsite, In 1866 the town was incor-
porated and the college building was well on the way to completion,

Upon the arrival of the United Brethren missionary train in Oregon in
1853, it was decided to divide Oregon into two conference districts, each
comprising an area of 3000 square miles, The south, or Willamette District,
was in charge of the Reverend T, J, Comnor. It was the ambition of edither
district not only to provide necessary church buildings for the growing
congregations, but also to build suitable schools for the higher religious
and literary training of the young people who were remote from educational
centers,

In February, 1865, a large group of settlers in the Willamette District
met to consider the feasibility of building a school, The meeting resulted
in pledges of $3,000 for a building, and $12,000 for land and endowment, A
half section of land was purchased for $2,510, eight acres of which were set
aside for the college. The remaining 312 acres were divided into lots for
sale to settlers. The proposal, along with the assets and pledges, was
presq;;ed to the United Brethren Church.

us aided by local settlers, the United Brthren of the Willamette
District founded Philomath College as the sectarian school for Washington,
Idaho, Montana, Oregon and Californiame The’ College was opened for use in
October, 1867, It was chartered as a Christian college for the liberal
education of both sexes, and for the training of ministers. The charter also
provided, in accord with sectarian ethic, that no intoxicating liquors were
permitted to be sold within a mile of the school. Philomath College prosper#d
and became popular enough that there was at one time a move to make it a
state institution, but the Church could not agree to surrender its interest
due to binding clauses in the school charter.
Philomath College served well in equipping young men for ministerial
careers, Among the school's earlier students was the Reverend Louis Albert
Banks, a native Oregonian and author, mostly of religious writings, who
became pastor of several of the nation's leading Methodist Episcopal churches.
His best known title, published in 1897, is An Oregon Boyhood. No less than
100 ministers and as many prominent lawyers and physicians and business men and
women were trained in the liberal arts at the college. However, with the (cont'’
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PHILOMATH COLLEGE

2. Location

Philomath College is located in the NW 1/4 SW 1/4 Sec. 12,
T. 12 S., R. 6 W., of the Willamette Meridian, in Benton County,

Oregon.

8. Statement of Significance (continued)

advent of state-supported institutions of higher learning in the
mid-Willamette Valley, Philomath College gradually languished for
lack of patronage, and in June, 1929, the doors of the college were

closed.




